
 
 

BOARD 
BOOK 
February 7, 2022 

 
 

 

 
 
 



 

 

 
REGULAR MEETING  

BOARD OF TRUSTEES DISTRICT NO. 531 RIVER ROOM  
ULLIN, IL 

February 7, 2022 
5:30 P.M. 

 
As permitted by Governor Pritzker’s Executive Orders 2020Ǧ 07, 2020Ǧ33, and, 2020Ǧ55 
Shawnee Community College, Pulaski County, Illinois, will convene a remote, regular 
meeting on February 7, 2022 at 5:30 PM via teleconference. Citizens and staff may 
participate in the teleconference by using the following link: https://shawneecc-
edu.zoom.us/j/119290368?pwd=NHdkNE5PMmJoSjY0NUlmWDl1UjNoQT09  
or by dialing 1-312-626-6799, when prompted enter conference ID 119290368 and press # 
instead of a participant number. The meeting will include an opportunity for public 
comment. Any member of the public that would like to make a public comment, must 
submit their public comment via email to comments@shawneecc.edu by 2:00 p.m. on 
February 7, 2022. Public comments submitted via email will be announced during the public 
comment portion of the meeting. 

 
I. Call to Order 

 
II. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
III. Roll Call 

 
IV. Recognition of Guests and Public Comment 

 
V. Approval of Consent Agenda 

Minutes of Regular January 18, 2022, Meeting 
Treasurer’s Report 
Approval of Bills 

 
Education Fund $804,583.04 

Building Fund 70,668.74 

Restricted Bldg. Fund 0.00 

Bond & Interest Fund 0.00 

Auxiliary Enterprises Fund 72,050.42 

Restricted Purposes Fund (Grants) 251,781.94 

Restricted Purposes - FWS* 1,273.03 

Restricted Purposes - PELL 22,983.00 

Restricted Purposes - SEOG 0.00 

Trust & Agency Fund 3,612.01 

  

Audit Fund 0.00 

Liability. Protection Settlement Fund (TORT) 73,636.15 

Grand Total $1,300,588.33 

https://shawneecc-edu.zoom.us/j/119290368?pwd=NHdkNE5PMmJoSjY0NUlmWDl1UjNoQT09
https://shawneecc-edu.zoom.us/j/119290368?pwd=NHdkNE5PMmJoSjY0NUlmWDl1UjNoQT09
https://shawneecc-edu.zoom.us/j/119290368
mailto:comments@shawneecc.edu


 

 

VI. Consideration of Addendum  
 Interfund Loan from Education Fund to Restricted Purpose Fund $40,000.00. 

 
VII. Reports 

A. Student Report – Bradley West (No Report) 
B. Faculty Report – Dr. Ian Nicolaides 
C. President – Dr. Tim Taylor 
D. Senior Leadership 

i. Academic Affairs – Darci Cather 
ii. Administrative Services – Chris Clark 

iii. Institutional Effectiveness – Dr. April Teske 
iv. Public Information & Marketing (No Report) 
v. Saints Foundation – Dr. Jeffrey Dufour 

vi. Student Affairs – Dr. Lisa Price 
E. Illinois Community College Trustees Association – James Darden 

 

VIII. Action and Discussion Items 
A. Consideration for Approval of the College Catalog for Fall 2022-23 (Sent Separately) 
B. Consideration for Approval of the GFI Digital Lease Agreement – ( 5 pp) 
C. Consideration for Approval of the Executive Order Implementation Protocol – ( 8 pp) 
D. Consideration for Approval of the Collective Bargaining Team 
E. Consideration for Approval of the GT Simulators Purchase (6 pp) 
F. Consideration for Approval of the Gaumard Pediatric Simulators Purchase (16 pp) 
G. Consideration for Approval of the Hill-ROM Bed Simulator Purchase ( 1p) 
H. Consideration for Approval of the Vacation Policy 6260 Revision (2 p) 
I. Policy Governance Training consistent with 110 ILCS 805/3-8.5  
J. Discussion of Board Policy Committee Recommendations (Sent Separately) 

i. Delegation of Authority (B20xx) – complete review 
ii. Executive Limitation (B30xx) – complete review 

 

IX. Executive Session 
A. Consideration of Extension, Alteration, Performance, or Compensation of 

Employees’ Employment pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2 (c)(1) 
i. Consideration for Approval to Hire an IT Student Support Specialist -

( 2 p) 
ii. Consideration for Approval to Hire a Director of Information 

Technology 
iii. Consideration for Approval to Hire an Executive Director of Public 

Information & Marketing 
iv. Consideration for Ratification of Part-Time Hires 
v. President Evaluation Update 

B. Consideration for Approval for Non-Renewal, Resignation, or Termination of 
any staff or employee of the College pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2 (c)(1) 

i. Consideration of Approval to Accept Full-Time Employee Resignation – ( 1 p) 
ii. Consideration of Approval to Accept Full-Time Employee Discipline 

(Recommendation will be provided during meeting.) 
C. Consideration of Items That May Lead or Have Led to Litigation pursuant to 

5 120/2 (c) (11)ILCS 

https://ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=011008050HArt%2E%2BIII&ActID=1150&ChapterID=18&SeqStart=4200000&SeqEnd=15100000
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=000501200K2
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=000501200K2
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=000501200K2


 

 

X. Action and Discussion on Executive Session Items 
A. Consideration of Extension, Alteration, Performance, or 

Compensation of Employees’ Employment  
i. Consideration for Approval to Hire an IT Student Support Specialist 

ii. Consideration for Approval to Hire a Director of Information 
Technology 

iii. Consideration for Approval to Hire an Executive Director of Public 
Information & Marketing 

iv. Consideration for Ratification of Part-Time Hires 
v. President Evaluation Update 

B. Consideration for Approval for Non-Renewal, Resignation, or Termination of 
any staff or employee of the College pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2 (c)(1)  

i. Consideration for Approval to Accept Full-Time Employee Resignation – ( 1 p) 
ii. Consideration for Approval to Accept Full-Time Employee Discipline 

(Recommendation will be provided during meeting.) 
C. Consideration of Items That May Lead or Have Led to Litigation 

 
XI. Adjournment  

 
 
  
 

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=000501200K2


Board Book Page 1 

Return to Agenda  
 

REGULAR MEETING  
BOARD OF TRUSTEES DISTRICT NO. 531 RIVER ROOM  

ULLIN, IL 
January 18, 2022 

5:30 P.M. 
 
A regular meeting of Shawnee Community College District No. 531 Board of Trustees was held 
on January 18, 2022, in the River Room and via Zoom.  The meeting was called to order at 5:30 
pm by Chairperson Steve Heisner. 

 
I. Call to Order 

 
II. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
III. Roll Call 

 
Present Trustee  Present Trustee 

X Mr. James Darden  X Ms. April Moore 
X Ms. Deborah Shelton-Yates  X Mr. John Windings 
X Mr. Steve Heisner  X Ms. Andrea Witthoft 
X Mr. Michael McMahan   Student Trustee (Advisory Vote) 

 
Others Present: 
Present Others  Present Others 

X Dr. Tim Taylor, President  X Darci Cather, Vice President of Academic Affairs 
X Dr. Lisa Price, Vice President of Student 

Services 
 X Chris Clark, Vice President of Administrative 

Services 
X Dr. Greg Mason, Dean of Career & Technology  X Dr. Kristin Shelby, Dean of Transfer & Adult 

Education 
X Dr. April Teske, Institutional Effectiveness  X Jean Ellen Boyd 
 Public Information & Marketing  X Dr. Jeffrey Dufour, Executive Director Foundation 

X John Schneider, Attorney  X Dr. Ian Nicolaides, S.C.E.A., President 
 Dr. Ryan Thornsberry, Instructor of English  X Tina Dudley, Executive Assistant, President & 

Foundation 
X Don Koch, Director of Facility  X David Hubbard, Public Comment 

 
IV. Recognition of Guests and Public Comment 

 
David Hubbard was present to express concerns related to the Ball Fields which included 
the roadway, non-accessibility by some visitors, lack of bleachers and restroom facilities, 
inadequate parking and uninsulated athletic buildings.   
 

V. Approval of Consent Agenda 

Minutes pg 1 of 10 



Board Book Page 2 

Return to Agenda  
 

MOTION NO.   1 
 
A motion was made by Andrea Witthoft and seconded by Mike McMahan to approve the 
consent agenda as follows: 

A. Regular Meeting Minutes December 6, 2021 
B. Treasurer’s Report                                       
C. Approval of Bills 

 
Education Fund $758,170.07 
Building Fund 116,667.44 
Restricted Bldg. Fund 0.00 
Bond & Interest Fund 1,689,000.00 
Auxiliary Enterprises Fund 48,609.47 
Restricted Purposes Fund (Grants) 198,679.47 
Restricted Purposes - FWS* 1,983.52 
Restricted Purposes - PELL 21,131.50 
Restricted Purposes - SEOG 0.00 
Trust & Agency Fund 1,311.42 
Audit Fund 17,000.00 
Liab. Prot. Settlement Fund 
(TORT) 229,658.74 

  
Grand Total 3,083,211.38 

 
On roll call vote, the members voted as follows:  S. Heisner, M. McMahan, J. Windings, A. 
Witthoft, D. Shelton-Yates, J. Darden and A. Moore all voted Yea.  The Chairperson declared the 
motion carried. 
 
 

 
VI. Consideration of Addendum and Reinvestment(s)  
 
MOTION NO.   2 
 

A motion was made by John Windings and seconded by Deborah Shelton-Yates to approve 
Addendum to make an interfund loan from Education Fund to Restricted Purposes Fund 
to cover shortage of funds of $20,000.00.  November 30, 2021       
 
On roll call vote, the member voted as follows:  A. Moore, J. Windings, A. Witthoft, D. Shelton-
Yates, S. Heisner, J. Darden, M. McMahan all voted Yea.  The Chairperson declared the motion 
carried. 
 
 

Minutes pg 2 of 10 



Board Book Page 3 

Return to Agenda  
 

VII. Reports 
A. Student Report – Bradley West 
B. Faculty – Dr. Ian Nicolaides 
C. President – Dr. Tim Taylor 
D. Senior Leadership 

i. Academic Affairs – Darci Cather 
ii. Administrative Services – Chris Clark 

iii. Institutional Effectiveness -Dr. April Teske 
iv. Public Information & Marketing 
v. Saints Foundation – Dr. Jeffrey Dufour 

vi. Student Affairs – Dr. Lisa Price 
E. Illinois Community College Trustees Association – James Darden 

 
VIII. Action and Discussion Items 

A. Consideration of Approval of Holiday Policy 6130  
B. Discussion of Main Campus Moisture Control Issues 
C. Discussion of FY23 Tuition Strategy 
D. Discussion of Ballfield Roadway Improvement Efforts 
E. Policy Governance Training consistent with 110 ILCS 805/3-8.5   
F. Discussion of Board Policy Committee Recommendations (Sent Separately)  

i. Bylaw (B40xx) updates recommended at December 2021 meeting.   
ii. Delegation of Authority (B20xx) – initial review 

iii. Executive Limitation (B30xx) – initial review 
 

IX. Executive Session 
A. Consideration of Extension, Alteration, Performance, or Compensation 

of Employees’ Employment pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2 (c)(1) 
i. Consideration for Approval to Hire an Administrative Assistant to the Dean of 

Transfer & Adult Education 
ii. Consideration for Approval to Hire a Director of Recruitment & Enrollment 

iii. Consideration for Approval to Hire a Medical Assistant Instructor 
iv. Consideration for Approval to Hire a Financial & College Operations 

Consultant 
v. Consideration for Approval of Faculty Stipends for Fall 2021 

vi. Consideration for Approval of Ratification of Adjunct/Faculty for Fall 2021 
vii. Consideration for Approval of Ratification of Part-Time Hires 

B. Consideration of Approval for Non-Renewal, Resignation, or Termination of any 
staff or employee of the College pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2 (c)(1) 
i. Consideration for Approval to Accept Full-Time Employee Retirement 
ii. Consideration for Approval to Accept Full-Time Employee Resignation 
iii. Consideration for Approval to Accept Full-Time Employee Resignation 
iv. Consideration for Approval of Full-Time Employee Termination 
v. Consideration for Approval of Full-Time Employee Disciplinary Sanctions 

C. Consideration of Items That May Lead or Have Led to Litigation pursuant to 5 ILCS 
120/2 (c) (11) 

Minutes pg 3 of 10 
X. Action and Discussion on Executive Session Items 

https://ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=011008050HArt%2E%2BIII&ActID=1150&ChapterID=18&SeqStart=4200000&SeqEnd=15100000
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=000501200K2
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=000501200K2
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=000501200K2
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=000501200K2


Board Book Page 4 

Return to Agenda  
 

A. Consideration of Extension, Alteration, Performance, or Compensation 
of Employees’ Employment  
i. Consideration for Approval to Hire an Administrative Assistant to 

the Dean of Transfer & Adult Education 
ii. Consideration for Approval to Hire a Director of Recruitment & Enrollment 

iii. Consideration for Approval to Hire a Medical Assistant Instructor 
iv. Consideration for Approval to Hire a Financial & College Operations 

Consultant 
v. Consideration for Approval of Faculty Stipends for Fall 2021 

vi. Consideration for Approval of Ratification of Adjunct/Faculty for Fall 2021 
vii. Consideration for Approval of Ratification of Part-Time Hires 

B. Consideration of Approval for Non-Renewal, Resignation, or Termination of any 
staff or employee of the College  
i. Consideration for Approval to Accept Full-Time Employee Retirement  
ii. Consideration for Approval to Accept Full-Time Employee Resignation 
iii. Consideration for Approval to Accept Full-Time Employee Resignation 
iv. Consideration for Approval of Full-Time Employee Termination 
v. Consideration for Approval of Full-Time Employee Disciplinary Sanctions 

C. Consideration of Items That May Lead or Have Led to Litigation  
 
 
MOTION NO.   3 
 
CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL OF HOLIDAY POLICY 6130  
 
A motion was made by James Darden and seconded by April Moore to recommend the Board 
approve the directed changes to Policy 6130 as presented.   
 
Discussion:  The Holiday Policy impacts staff only.  Faculty are, by contract, bound by 
instructional days. 

 
On roll call vote, the members voted as follows: A. Moore, S. Heisner, D. Shelton-Yates, J. 
Darden, A. Witthoft, M. McMahan, J. Windings all voted Yea.  The Chairperson declared the 
motion carried. 
 
 
MOTION NO.   4 
 
DISCUSSION OF MAIN CAMPUS MOISTURE CONTROL ISSUES 
 
Over the past few years, concerns have been expressed from a number of employees related to 
moisture control issues at the Main Campus.  January of 2020, Summit Environmental Services 
(SES) was hired to perform an indoor air quality analysis in several locations throughout the 
campus.  October, 2021, SES performed a follow-up indoor air quality analysis.  The College is 
currently within acceptable air quality standards.      Minutes pg 4 of 10 



Board Book Page 5 

Return to Agenda  
 

MOTION NO.   5 
 
DISCUSSION OF FY23 TUITION STRATEGY 
 
Consistent with 110 ILCS 805/Art.VI of the Illinois Community College Act, it is the Board’s 
responsibility to establish tuition rates.  The College’s strategic plan notes the College’s intent to 
establish a rolling three-year tuition strategy as part of a long-term financial planning process.  
Because of a short timeline, the Board provided acceptable options for consideration. 

 
MOTION NO.       6 
 
DISCUSSION OF BALLFIELD ROADWAY IMPROVEMENT EFFORTS 
 
There have been several inquiries related to the gravel road that leads to the baseball and softball 
diamonds.  An update on efforts for improvement and updates was provided to the Board.   

A motion was made by Andrea Witthoft and seconded by John Windings to authorize the 
President to seek remedy for insulation and heating issues.  If those remedies fall within his 
funding authority, he should move forward. 

The Board approved the President to move forward to remedy the heating concerns of the 
athlete’s outbuilding. 

On roll call vote, the members voted as follows:  A. Witthoft, A. Moore, M. McMahan, J. 
Darden, S. Heisner, J. Windings and D. Shelton-Yates all voted Yea.  The Chairperson declared 
the motion carried. 

 
MOTION NO.       7 
 
POLICY GOVERNANCE TRAINING 
 
An hour of Policy Governance Training focused on Delegation of Authority was provided.  Also 
included was the Presentation of Bylaw (B4000xx series) Policies by Dr. Taylor. Revisions were 
made by the Board of Trustees and under the advisement of legal counsel, John Schneider. 
Delegation of Authority (B20xx) and Executive Limitations (B30xx) Policies review was 
initiated. 
 
 
MOTION NO.   8 
 
DISCUSSION OF BOARD POLICY COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

i. Bylaw (40xx) review revisions recommended at December 6, 2021, Meeting 
ii. Delegation of Authority (B20xx) – Initial Review 

iii. Executive Limitation (B30xx) – Initial Review    Minutes pg 5 of 10 



Board Book Page 6 

Return to Agenda  
 

MOTION NO.   9 
 
IX.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
A motion was made by John Windings and seconded by Deborah Shelton-Yates to adjourn and 
go into Executive Session at 8:37 p.m.  
 
On roll call vote, the members voted as follows: A. Moore, A. Witthoft, J. Darden, M. 
McMahan, D. Shelton-Yates, S. Heisner, J. Windings all voted Yea.  The Chairperson declared 
the motion carried. 
 
MOTION NO.   10 
 
A motion was made by Deborah Shelton-Yates and seconded by Andrea Witthoft to adjourn out 
of Executive Session at 10:21 p.m.   
 
On roll call vote, the members voted as follows:  D. Shelton-Yates, M. McMahan, J. Windings, 
S. Heisner, J. Darden, A. Moore, A. Witthoft all voted Yea. The Chairperson declared the motion 
carried, 
 

MOTION NO.   11 
 
 
A motion was made by April Moore and seconded by Andrea Witthoft to approve the minutes of 
the Executive Session held on January 18, 2022.   
 
On roll call vote, the members voted as follows: S. Heisner, J. Windings, J. Darden, A Witthoft, 
D. Shelton-Yates, M. McMahan, A. Moore all voted Yea.  The Chairperson declared the motion 
carried. 
 

MOTION NO.     12 
 

CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL TO HIRE AN ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT 
TO THE DEAN OF TRANSFER & ADULT EDUCATION  
 
A motion was made by Andrea Witthoft and seconded by John Windings to recommend the 
Board approve Vicky Cornelissen for the position of Administrative Assistant to the Dean of 
Transfer & Adult Education effective January 19, 2022. 
  
On roll call vote, the members voted as follows:  J. Darden, J. Windings, D. Shelton-Yates, M. 
McMahan, A. Moore, S. Heisner, A. Witthoft all voted Yea.  The Chairperson declared the 
motion carried. 
 

Minutes pg 6 of 10 



Board Book Page 7 

Return to Agenda  
 

MOTION NO.    13 
 

CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL TO HIRE A DIRECTOR OF RECRUITMENT & 
ENROLLMENT  
 
A motion was made by April Moore and seconded by Deborah Shelton-Yates to recommend the 
Board approve the hire of Dr. Cara Doerr for the position of Director of Recruitment & 
Enrollment effective January 19, 2022. 
 
On roll call vote, the members voted as follows: M. McMahan, A. Moore, S. Heisner, J. Darden, 
A. Witthoft, D. Shelton-Yates all voted Yea.  J. Windings voted Nay.  The Chairperson declared 
the motion carried. 
 

MOTION NO.   14 
 
CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL TO HIRE A MEDICAL ASSISTANT 
INSTRUCTOR 
 
A motion was made by Deborah Shelton-Yates and seconded by Andrea Witthoft to recommend 
the Board approve the hire of Orena Ball for the position of Medical Assistant Instructor 
effective January 19, 2022. 
  
On roll call vote, the members voted as follows: M. McMahan, J. Windings, D. Shelton-Yates, 
A. Moore, J. Darden, S. Heisner, A. Witthoft all voted Yea.  The Chairperson declared the 
motion carried. 
 

MOTION NO.   15 
 
CONSIDERATION FOR RATIFICATION OF FINANCIAL & COLLEGE 
OPERATIONS CONSULTANT 
 
A motion was made by John Windings and seconded by Steve Heisner to recommend the Board 
ratify the attached contract and authorize the CEO to enter into an agreement with BeMac 
Consulting, LLC., for a term of February 1, 2022, through June 30, 2022. 
 
On roll call vote, the members voted as follows: J. Darden, A. Witthoft, S. Heisner, A. Moore, J. 
Windings, D. Shelton-Yates, M. McMahan all voted Yea.  The Chairperson declared the motion 
carried. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Minutes pg 7 of 10 



Board Book Page 8 

Return to Agenda  
 

MOTION NO.   16 
 
CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL OF FACULTY STIPENDS FOR FALL 2021 

A motion was made by Andrea Witthoft and seconded by James Darden to recommend the 
Board ratify the Fall 2021 Faculty stipends as presented. 
 
On roll call vote, the members voted as follows:  S. Heisner, D. Shelton-Yates, M. McMahan, A. 
Moore, J. Darden, J. Windings, A. Witthoft all voted Yea.  The Chairperson declared the motion 
carried. 
 
 
MOTION NO.   17 
 
CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL OF RATIFICATION OF ADJUNCT/FACULTY 
FOR FALL 2021 
 
A motion was made by John Windings and seconded by Andrea Witthoft to recommend the 
Board ratify the Fall 2021 employment of adjunct faculty as presented.  
 

On roll call vote, the members voted as follows: D. Shelton-Yates, S. Heisner, J. Windings, A. 
Witthoft, M. McMahan, J. Darden all voted Yea.  A. Moore abstained.  The Chairperson 
declared the motion carried. 
 
MOTION NO.   18 
 
CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL OF RATIFICATION OF PART-TIME HIRES 
 
A motion was made by James Darden and seconded by Steve Heisner to recommend the Board 
ratify the Part-Time employee listed.  
 
On roll call vote, the members voted as follows: A. Witthoft, J. Darden, J. Windings, A. Moore, 
D. Shelton-Yates, M. McMahan, S. Heisner all voted Yea.  The Chairperson declared the motion 
carried. 
 
MOTION NO.   19 
 
CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL TO ACCEPT FULL-TIME EMPLOYEE 
RETIREMENT 
 
A motion was made by April Moore and seconded by Mike McMahan to recommend the Board 
approve the retirement of Joe Morris effective December 31, 2021.  
 
On roll call vote, the members voted as follows: J. Darden, D. Shelton-Yates, M. McMahan, A. 
Moore, S. Heisner, J. Windings, A. Witthoft all voted Yea.  The Chairperson declared the motion 
carried.           Minutes pg 8 of 10 



Board Book Page 9 

Return to Agenda  
 

MOTION NO.   20 
 

CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL TO ACCEPT FULL-TIME EMPLOYEE 
RESIGNATION 
 
A motion was made by Mike McMahan and seconded by John Windings to recommend the 
Board approve the resignation of Ricky Jerrell effective December 13, 2021.  
 
On roll call vote, the members voted as follows:  S. Heisner, D. Shelton-Yates, M. McMahan, A. 
Moore, J. Darden, J. Windings, A. Witthoft all voted Yea.  The Chairperson declared the motion 
carried. 
 
 
MOTION NO.         21 
 
CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL TO ACCEPT THE FULL-TIME EMPLOYEE 
RESIGNATION 
 
A motion was made by Deborah Shelton-Yates and seconded by April Moore to recommend the 
Board approve the resignation of Phyllis Sander effective January 3, 2022.   
 
On roll call vote, the members voted as follows: J. Darden, D. Shelton-Yates, M. McMahan, A. 
Moore, S. Heisner, J. Windings, A. Witthoft all voted Yea.  The Chairperson declared the motion 
carried. 
 
 
MOTION NO.       22 
 
CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL OF FULL-TIME EMPLOYEE TERMINATION 
 
A motion was made by John Windings and seconded by Andrea Witthoft to recommend the 
Board approve the termination of Full-Time Employee Sabrina Banks effective January 19, 
2022.   
 
On roll call vote, the members voted as follows:  A. Witthoft, A. Moore, M. McMahan, J. 
Darden, S. Heisner, J. Windings, D. Shelton-Yates all voted Yea.  The Chairperson declared the 
motion carried. 
 
 
MOTION NO.       23 
 
CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL OF FULL-TIME EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINARY 
SANCTIONS  
 
There was no action. 

Minutes pg 9 of 10 



Board Book Page 10 

Return to Agenda  
 

MOTION NO.     24 
 
XI. Adjournment 
 
A motion was made by John Windings and seconded by James Darden to adjourn at 10:31 p.m. 
 

On roll call vote, the members voted as follows:  J. Darden, A. Witthoft, J. Windings, M. 
McMahan, D. Shelton-Yates, A. Moore, S. Heisner all voted Yea.  The Chairperson declared the 
motion carried. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Minutes pg 10 of 10



Board Book Page 11 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 12 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 13 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 14 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 15 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 16 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 17 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 18 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 19 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 20 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 21 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 22 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 23 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 24 

Return to Agenda  
 

 

 
 

SHAWNEE COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

For the Month of January 2022 
Approval of Bills 

 

FUND  EXPENDITURES 
   
Education Fund  $804,583.04 
   
Building Fund  70,668.74 
   
Restricted Bldg Fund  0.00 
   
Bond & Interest Fund  0.00 
   
Auxiliary Enterprises Fund  72,050.42 
   
Restricted Purposes Fund (Grants)  251,781.94 
   
Restricted Purposes – FWS*  1,273.03 
   
Restricted Purposes - PELL  22,983.00 
   
Restricted Purposes - SEOG  0.00 
   
Trust & Agency Fund  3,612.01 
   
Audit Fund  0.00 
   
Liab. Prot. Settlement Fund (TORT)  73,636.15 
   
   
GRAND TOTAL  $1,300.588.33 
   

 

 

________________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Chairperson      Secretary 

 

      ____________ 
      Date 



Board Book Page 25 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 26 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 27 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 28 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 29 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 30 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 31 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 32 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 33 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 34 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 35 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 36 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 37 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 38 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 39 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 40 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 41 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
SHAWNEE COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

 
ADDENDUM TO EDUCATION FUND 

 
February 8, 2022 

 
 
 
 
 Date  Vendor 
 

12/31/21 Shawnee Community College    $40,000.00 
   Restricted Purposes Fund 

  Ullin, IL 62992 
 

To make an inter-fund loan from the Education fund to the Restricted Purposes 
fund to cover shortage of funds. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________  ____________________________________ 
  Chairman      Secretary 
 
     _________________ 
                  Date 
 
 
 



Board Book Page 42 

Return to Agenda  
 

Student Trustee Report (No Report) 
 
 
 



Board Book Page 43 

Return to Agenda  
 

Faculty Board Report - February 7, 2022 
 

CTE Department  

January 7, 2022 – All eight CTE Department faculty attended the Simple Syllabus professional 
development session. This included Anna Davenport, Derek Pender, Eric Howard, Randy Lingle, 
Ruth Smith, Sherrie Malone, and Wendy Harris. 

January 11, 2022 – Craig Bradley, Astronomy and Computer Instructor, attended a virtual 
orientation for the Illinois Community College System Foundation (ICCSF). Craig was 
appointed to that board by the ICCB as the faculty liaison between the boards. His first meeting 
with the ICCSF will be March 2, 2022. The meeting attendees were Dr. Barry Hancock, Dr. 
Bradley Griffith, Dr. Terri Winfree and Craig Bradley. 

January 19, 2022 – Craig Bradley, PTK faculty sponsor, and officers of the Alpha Lambda 
Epsilon Chapter of Phi Theta Kappa (PTK) have submitted their final reports to PTK 
headquarters and completed the chapter Five-Star requirements. They worked about 10 hours 
over the MLK holiday weekend refining what they had created for the submissions. All 
submissions were due at 5 p.m. January 19. Items submitted were Distinguished Chapter Officer 
Team, Honors in Action, College Project, and Alumni Hall of Honor (Christina Faulkner). The 
International Convention will be held April 7-9, 2022 in Denver, CO.  

Humanities  

Lee Van Alstine: 
1) Will be visiting schools next month to share band and choir student’s opportunities for 
scholarships. 
 
2) The choir will be performing music (live no less) March 2nd in honor of Black History 
Month. 7pm in the Ed. Center.  
 
3) Spring Concert for band and choir will be May 6th. Ed center 7 pm.   
 

Jesse Smith-Fulia is actively working on creating an articulation agreement with the University 
of IL' s Social Work program. If we are successful, then students could start in Shawnee college's 
online Social Work program and finish at U of I's online Social Work program with a bachelor's 
degree in social work.   
 

Math and Science 

The math department has been meeting with ASPIRE to help reform our math pathways. 
 

Roberta Christie has been working with IMACC on the Curriculum Committee to make 
statewide recommendations for community colleges forming co-requisite classes. 
 

Lori Armstrong and Dr. Ian Nicolaides were interviewed by WSIL TV and The Southern 
Illinoisan to promote the new Anatomage Virtual Dissection Table. The science department 
would like to provide a demonstration for the Board of Trustees and after we receive training on 
the table.  Training is scheduled in the near future.    
Ms. Sheryl Ribbing has been serving as a math/science tutor.   
 
Submitted by: Ian Nicolaides, SCEA President 
 



Board Book Page 44 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 
 
 

President’s Report 
February 7, 2022 

Enrollment Update   
Headcount Reimbursable Credit-Hours 

 
FY22 

FY21 
(YTD) 

% ∆ 
FY21 
(Final) 

FY 22 
FY21 
(YTD) 

% ∆ 
FY21 
(Final) 

Summer 758 668 13.47% 668 2,996 3,139.5 -4.57% 3,139.5 
Fall  1,534 1,632 -6.07% 1,632 12,656 12,589.5 0.53% 12,435 

Spring 1,140 1,258 -11.0% 1,773 10,140 11,835.5 -14.3% 14,168 
Total 3,432 3,558 -3.54% 4,073 25,792 27,564.5 -6.43% 29,743 
FY 22 Credit-Hour Budget Projection 33,237 Difference 7,445 

*Data pulled 01/31/2022; State reimbursement is based on credit-hours generated at mid-term.  

The following events are noteworthy: 
• On 01/18, I participated in the SICCM Board meeting. The agenda focused on an enrollment 

for the Medical Lab Technician (MLT), Occupational Therapy Assistant (OTA), and Surgical 
Technology programs.  All programs appear to be tracking behind expectations for spring 
enrollment.  YTD progress was discussed relative to the FY22 budget and several significant 
purchases was approved.  An incentive pay proposal for several SICCM administrative staff 
who are connected to TANF grants was discussed but was tabled for future consideration. 
 

• Community Engagement Meetings (G1O3S-All): 
o 01/13 – Attended Anna-Jonesboro Rotary Meeting. 
o 01/14, attended a meeting hosted by Lynne Chambers and the Executive Justice 

Institute.  The focus of the meeting was to continue discussions on activities associated 
with the Community Remembrance Project.  I reiterated the College’s support of this 
effort.  Mike McNally also participated in this conversation.   

o 01/21 – Met with Vienna Superintendent Josh Stafford.  The focus of the discussion was 
aimed at strengthening the relationship between the two organizations.  Superintendent 
Stafford communicated that he felt SCC had “stepped up your game” over the last 
several months and felt satisfied that our partnership was moving in the right direction. 

o 01/27 – Attended Anna-Jonesboro Rotary Meeting  
o 01/29 – Attended with my wife (Missy) the Union County Chamber and Economic 

Development Gala.  In attendance with me was JoElla (and John) Basler, Dr. Jeff (and 
Shannon) DuFore, Tina Dudley, and Angela Boyd. 

 
• Executive Order Response & COVID Mitigation Meetings: 

o 01/12 – Met with College’s COVID Mitigation Team to revise EO protocols. 
o 01/21 – Met w/ ICCB and the Illinois Community College President’s Council (ICCPC) to 

review EO protocol response strategy and discuss implications of HB 2778.  At this 
point, further guidance on HB 2778 will be issued by ICCB. 

 
 
 

Page 1 of 2 



Board Book Page 45 

Return to Agenda  
 

• Miscellaneous Meetings 
o 01/04 – Met with Brad McCormick to negotiate consulting contract proposal. 

(G4O6/7/8/9S-All) 
o 01/14 – Met with Lindsay Johnson to discuss issues related to the Extension Centers. 
o 01/20 – Interviewed three Executive Director of Public Information & Marketing 

candidates.  
o 01/21 – Met with Student Affairs staff and Dr. Teske to discuss future reporting 

requirements of the Community Education Monitoring Report. (G4O1SG) 
o 01/28 – Met with Dr. Price and Lindsay Johnson to discuss expectations related to 

Extension Center participation in local City Council, County Board, and Community 
Organizations.  A speech template will be produced for use by all Extension Center 
Coordinators.  I will assist/support each Coordinator as needed. (G1O3SC/D/E) 

 
• On 1/31, Vice President Cather and I visited Executive Director Patrick Harner at the Five 

County Regional Vocational Center (FCRVC) in Tamms.  A large portion of the discussion 
centered on the possibility of moving the FCRVC to the College’s Ullin campus.  Several 
academic programming issues were discussed.  ED Harner intends to share some ideas with 
his Board and will contact the College about future direction afterwards.  This meeting is 
anticipated to happen in February. (G1O2SC, G1O3SH, G2O1SB, and G2O1SD) 

Contracts, Agreements, MOU’s, and Letters of Support signed 
• Innovative Bridge and Transition Grant (ICCB) – $150,000 awarded/no College match 

required.  The purpose of this grant is to create or support programs that improve student 
transitions to and through postsecondary education (up to post baccalaureate) and into 
employment, programs that support these transitions for individuals with disabilities; and 
scale programs that promote equity and diversity.  

• Developmental Education Innovation Grant Application (ICCB) – $25,000 requested/no 
College Match.  The purpose of this grant is to decrease time to degree completion for 
students who are not college-ready by improving developmental English and Math courses. 

• Heartland Coca-Cola Bottling Co, LLC Beverage Agreement – renew term of beverage 
agreement through April 15, 2023.   

• Requisition (AWG Welding & Gas) – $7,594.58 for Welding Supplies (Perkins Funded). 
• Requisition (SKC Communications) for $8,590.50 for Zoom Renewal and Cloud Recording. 
• Requisition (Crowdus) – $9,095 for Extra COVID Cleaning. 
• Requisition (Verizon) – $6,812.69 for College Cellphone Usage. 
• Requisition (Soft Docs) – $18,290.00 Annual Renewal for Document Management System. 
• Requisition (MidWest Terminal) – $20,500.00 for diesel fuel used in boilers. 
• Requisition (Travelers) for $8,428.00 for Illinois School Treasurer Bond, Annual Premium 

for Chris Clark. 
• Requisition (Ellucian) for $9,929.00 for Ellucian Colleague Degree Audit, Consulting 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 



Board Book Page 46 

Return to Agenda  
 

Academic Affairs & Student Learning Report - February 7, 2022 
 
Highlights 

• Shawnee Community College was awarded $150,000 Innovative Bridge and 
Transitions Grant through ICCB. The grant focuses on the development of articulation 
agreements, college and career pathways, and college and career pathways endorsements 
for high schools within the Shawnee Community College district.  

• The Office of High School Partnerships and Pathways completed an audit of all existing 
dual credit/enrollment offerings at in-district high schools.  

 
Transfer and Adult Ed  

• Launched program of study development process as required by Perkins V. All CTE 
programs will be required to have a program of study by the end of the academic year in 
order to be eligible for Perkins V funding. This will be an ongoing process with a target 
completion date of April 1, 2022. Weekly writing sessions will be held with faculty 
where Drs. Shelby and Mason assist with questions related to the quality components of 
the application. All CTE faculty attended the hour-long POS training session held by Dr. 
Shelby on January 6, 2022, as part of Convocation Day.  

• Dr. Shelby, Lori Armstrong, David Black, Roberta Christie, and Connie McGinnis 
continue work with Women Employed and the ASPIRE grant as math faculty redesign 
SCC’s developmental math courses so that they decrease time to completion for students 
testing into remedial math. A networking day with other Illinois community colleges in 
the ASPIRE cohort was held on January 21, 2022. Finally, Dr. Shelby, Darci, Cather, 
Lori Armstrong, and JoElla Basler held a planning meeting on January 11, 2022, to 
pursue a competitive grant opportunity through ICCB to help continue to fund work in 
the area of math corequisites and the Level Up English program. The grant is due to 
ICCB on January 31, 2022 

• Coordinator of High School Partnerships & Pathways has contacted all 12 high school 
superintendents to schedule a “Meet and Greet” session at their school with the 
Superintendent, Principal, and Guidance office.  The meeting will be to introduce the new 
role of Coordinator of High School Partnerships and Pathways and start a working 
relationship.  

• Coordinator of HSPP met with the seniors at Vienna High School to go over the online 
scholarship application for SCC. 

• Coordinator of HSPP and Ambassadors attended the February 12th game at Vienna High 
School vs. Goreville High School.  SCC swag was thrown out and SCC was able to 
present at half-time.   Teale Betts went and spoke with the Junior and Seniors in the 
Construction Management program in Marion in February. 

• Coordinator of HSPP served as a judge for the Goreville High School Homecoming Skits 
on Friday, January 14th.  
 

Nursing and Allied Health  
• At the beginning of the 2022 Spring Semester, there are 28 Practical Nursing student 30 

Associate Degree Nursing students.  
• Faculty have returned to teaching courses in one section again instead of dividing up 

classes and teaching twice, thus reducing faculty workloads. 



Board Book Page 47 

Return to Agenda  
 

• Orena Ball joined SCC as the new Medical Assistant instructor. Mrs. Ball has years of 
experience as a Certified Medical Assistant and will be an asset to the Nursing and Allied 
Health Department.  

• 9 students are registered for the Emergency Medical Technician course for Spring 2022 
• Upcoming ACEN Accreditation Visit has been scheduled virtually for February 2-4th 

due to the recent rapidly increasing COVID cases.  
 
Career & Technology Programs  

• Dr. Mason will present at the annual Illinois Grape Growers and Vintners Association 
(IGGVA) Conference in Centerville on Feb 28-March 2, 2022.  Dr. Mason will discuss 
the education and workforce development opportunities available for the grape and wine 
industry through Shawnee Community College. 

• Brett Whitnel, Interim Director of the Small Business Development Center worked with 
two small business clients to apply and successfully receive small business loans totaling 
approximately $350,000 from private banks and the Southernmost Illinois Delta 
Empowerment Zone (SIDEZ). 

• Dr. Mason and Brett Whitnell attended the Union County Chamber of Commerce and 
Economic Development 7th Annual Dinner on January 29, 2022. 

• The CPR Program held 29 classes and served 71 students for the month of December. An 
Instructor Renewal class and re-certification of 2 CPR instructors was also held. There 
are currently 25 classes scheduled for the month of January. 

• The Driver Safety Program received and processed 178 applications in December. There 
were 129 participants who completed their training and received a certificate of 
completion in December. Face-to-face classes will resume for the Driver Safety Program 
on February 2, 2022. 

 
Darci Cather      February 7, 2022 
Vice-President Academic Affairs   Date 
 
 



Board Book Page 48 

Return to Agenda  
 

Administrative Services Report – February 7, 2022 

Facilities Department 

The facilities department has completed requested painting and repairs in offices that were 
moved.  Installed the secondary boiler at Metro Center.  Getting quotes for the insulation of the 
batting cage building.  Continuing to work with architects for solutions to reduce the amount of 
humidity at main campus.  Expecting the bids for the additional entrances for the truck driving 
program at Metro Center.  Working with the architects on the outdoor athletic facility 
development project. 
 

Business Service Department 

January is always an extremely busy month for the Business Office as it is the beginning of a 
new semester and calendar year end financial close out reports are due. Tax forms W-2s, 1098ts, 
and 1099s have been completed. Completed the CARES act institutional reporting requirements 
for the fourth quarter of 2021 and posted it to the College’s website. Completed grant quarterly 
reports. The College had a Workmen’s Compensation Audit in the month of January. Completed 
budget information for the ICCB Underrepresented Group Report. Attended a Community 
College Business Officers webinar on Federal Student Loan changes. Attended the Illinois 
Community College CFO meeting via zoom. 
 

I.T. Department 

The IT department received equipment from the USDA to update the technology for 20 
classrooms at Main Campus and Anna.  The older projectors will be replaced with Samsung 75" 
TVs and the instructor's station will be updated with a new Dell PC.  Nursing lectures are being 
recorded and archived.  Updated COVID website with additional statistics.  The creation of a 
Shared Governance webpage is in progress.  Finishing up the Fall Claim report for 
ICCB.  Improvements to Saints Check system were completed.  Received new Chromebooks for 
Delta Grant.  Installed the year-end regulatory updates in Colleague for Business 
Office.  Uploaded on-premise database to the Ellucian Cloud for the initial core build. 
 

Bookstore 

The SCC Campus Bookstore has been busy in the new year. On December 13-18, 2021 the 
bookstore conducted book buybacks. The bookstore also had a Christmas sale during the week of 
buybacks. On December 27, 2021, the Bookstore was able to supply textbooks to loan to 
students during the intersession courses. Book sales started on January 4, 2022, and the SCC 
Campus Bookstore has been busy selling books and getting students ready for their upcoming 
Spring semester. The SCC Campus Bookstore website has had more online book sales during the 
Spring semester than any previous semester. If you haven't had the chance to check out the 
bookstore website go over to bookstore.shawneecc.edu. 
 

Chris Clark 

Vice President of Administrative Services 

http://bookstore.shawneecc.edu/


Board Book Page 49 

Return to Agenda  
 

Institutional Research, Effectiveness, & Planning Board Report February 2022  
 
The following report summarizes the more notable activities since the submission of the last 
Board report (January 4, 2022-January 26, 2022).  

• Assisted programs with survey data needed for internal decision-making (i.e. community 
ed, CTE Day) (1.2.O, 1.3.A., 4.1.) 

• Continued meeting with various staff and leadership to strengthen the use of our 
infrastructure for collection of KPIs by determining and revisiting what services/data 
processes we currently have and exploring gaps in data collection and processes for 
systematic collection of the needed data (2.1.H., 4.1.A., 4.1.E, 4.1.F., 4.3.C., 4.5.B., 
4.5.C.). 

o Met with employees to discuss and plan Colleague training needs in student 
services and academic affairs 

o Completed the SmartEvals services contract for course evaluations and surveys 
and facilitated the discussion of roles and timelines.  

o Met with small teams to continue reviewing and improving recurring reports (i.e. 
program comparisons, students by program with advisor) 

o Facilitated discussions about appropriate coding of courses in Colleague for ICCB 
compliance and internal reporting  

• Developed a guide for writing monitoring reports and met with each department on their 
respective monitoring reports (4.1.A., 4.1.E, 4.1.F., 4.1.G.).   

• Worked on a visual representation of SCCES, particularly the student success element, to 
illustrate where the KPIs fit into the transition points from student inquiry to graduate 5-
year follow-up. (4.1.F.). 

• Assisted J. Boyd and J. Van Meter with designing a Shared Governance webpage (3.4.C.) 
• Submitted a grant proposal with Council on Accreditation for Two-Year Colleges 

(CATYC) to enhance the progress made in HLC Criterion 4: Teaching and Learning that 
will assist with the visual representation of SCCES (4.1.F.).  

• Continued preparations for the Community College Survey of Student Engagement 
(CCSSE) for spring 2022 (2.1.C., 2.1.D., 2.1.F., 2.2, 3.1.C., 4.1.A., 4.5.B.).  

• Worked with Dr. Taylor and D. Cather to develop a policy evaluation matrix and process 
(3.4.B.) 

• Assisted with the Spring 2021 planning and implementation for compliance with the 
Governor’s Executive Order 

• Worked with Executive Leadership on a Senior Administrative Annual Evaluation Tool 
(Goal 3) 

 
Submitted by: Dr. April Teske 
Executive Director of Institutional Effectiveness 
 
 



Board Book Page 50 

Return to Agenda  
 

Public Information & Marketing (No Report) 
 



Board Book Page 51 

Return to Agenda  
 

Saints Foundation Report 
February 2022 

 

The Saints Foundation will be meeting in the near future with the Shawnee Community College 
baseball coach to see what upgrades might be done to the outdoor facilities. The Saints 
Foundation will assess and offer suggestions that could potentially address the needs of both 
facilities. The Saints Foundation will also work with Coach John Sparks as well to provide ideas 
and insight.  

The Saints Foundation has been meeting with superintendents of local school districts to conduct 
initial meetings with them to look at their facilities and to speak to the needs of their students and 
how the Foundation can best assist them. So far meetings have been held with the 
superintendents of Vienna, Cobden, Joppa, and Century school districts. Many positive 
discussions have taken place. The remaining school districts will be done in the near future.  

The next meeting of the Saints Foundation Board of Directors is set for Friday, March 4th, 2022, 
beginning at 9:00 a.m. in the River Room of the Main Campus. This meeting will also be on 
Zoom for those that can’t meet in person.  

 
 



Board Book Page 52 

Return to Agenda  
 

Student Success and Services February 7, 2022 
 
Admissions 
Danielle Boyd—Registrar 
 
The Fall 2021 graduation list has been completed.  There were 127 completions for the Fall 2021 
graduation.  For Fall 2020, we had 123 completions.  
 
Advisement and Recruitment 
Carrie Davis- Recruiter & Advisor 
 
The advisement hallway has been busy over the past month, beginning the Spring semester.  
Many students have come in to finalize their class schedules over the last several weeks.  
Additionally, advisors have contacted their respective high schools to complete dual credit 
registration.  The goal has been to have all dual credit hours enrolled by the 10th day of the 
semester.  The Advisors have been in the high schools and talking about the scholarship booklet 
and following up with students who have questions on how this process works.  They will each 
continue to reach out to ensure all students are being taken care of.  Also, regarding the high 
schools, Advisors have been working with the schools to find dates that they would be able to 
attend their sporting events.  The plan is for each Advisor to take Ambassadors with them to the 
event to pass out SCC goodies to the community.  Work has also begun to invite all of our 
district high school Juniors and Seniors to visit our campus for CTE day on February 22.  
Advisors have also been collaborating with high school personnel to deliver Scholarship 
Booklets, assist in scholarship completion, and follow-up as needed.  
 
Athletics 
John Sparks—Athletic Director 
 
Overal general athletic department news:  Shawnee student-athletes are testing weekly, wearing 
their masks, and managing the current Covid-19 serge.  Fifty-three of the students athletes had a 
3.0 or higher GPA for the Fall semester. Of  those 53 student-athletes, 16 had a GPA of 3.8 or 
higher this past semester.   
 
Men’s Basketball (John Sparks) pulled off a convincing upset of newly-ranked number two John 
A. Logan – beating the Volunteers at home in Ullin.  Adrian Cohen scored 26 points while 
Tedrick Washington netted 24 for the Saints, who improved to 10-5.  Each player buried four 
treys in the game.  Glenn Valentine, Jr., was also in double figures with 14 points.  The SAINTS' 
overall record is 10-5. The Saints Men's Basketball team finished the Fall semester with 
a 3.0 team GPA. 
  
Coach Thompson's Lady Saints overall record is 9-3.  They had an outstanding first semester and 
look forward to another strong semester.  The Lady Saints Women's Basketball team finished the 
Fall semester with a 2.3 team GPA. 
 



Board Book Page 53 

Return to Agenda  
 

Coach Ken Reichert and the team have started their Spring training and conditioning 
program.  The Saints first game is at the end of February.  The Saints Baseball team finished the 
Fall semester with a 2.9 team GPA. 
 
Coach Kyle Smith and the team have started their Spring training and conditioning 
program.  The Lady Saints first game is at the end of February.  The Lady Saints Softball team 
finished the Fall semester with a 3.2 team GPA. 
 
The Lady Volleyball coaching search is continuing.  The Lady Saints Volleyball team finished 
the Fall semester with a 2.78 team GPA. 
 
COVID Testing 
Kylee Frassato—COVID Health Coordinator 
 
With the start of the new semester, Covid-19 cases took a steady increase in the Southern Illinois 
area.  Kylee and her Covid team have been diligently and safely testing over 400 students, 
faculty, staff, and community members since the start of the Spring 2022 term.  The focus of the 
Covid team this month has been on implementing all procedures set forth by the Governor's 
office in terms of his Executive Order No. 87.  The Covid Mitigation Team has also developed a 
finalized Executive Order Implementation guideline that has gone in to effect.  The Health 
Screeners have also been training on informing the public about the importance of PPE and 
staying safe during this stage of the pandemic.  The teamwork and understanding seen 
throughout the Saints Community surrounding the importance of testing and quarantining has 
been outstanding and is leading to a decrease in the number of daily positive cases for this area. 
 
Extension Centers 
Lindsay Johnson-Director of Community Education & Outreach Centers 
 
The extension centers have been welcoming back our students for the spring semester.  The 
majority of the classes offered this spring began this month, but each center also has a wide 
variety of classes that start in February and March.  This month, the centers have enjoyed 
providing community education classes, such as CPR and Food Service Sanitation classes.  Each 
center will be hosting a Covid Vaccine clinic in partnership with IEMA in January and February.  
We are eager to expand our community education opportunities and grow the relationships 
between SCC and each center's surrounding towns.  
 
Financial Aid 
Tammy Capps—Coordinator of Financial Aid 
 
Assisted students with FAFSA questions, verification information, professional judgment 
information, dependency overrides, bookstore vouchers, and cafeteria vouchers to prepare them 
to begin the Spring 2022 semester. 
 
The Financial Aid Office was open for evening registration until 6 p.m. on January 5th, 6th, and 
10th.  We were also open on Saturday, January 8, from 8 a.m. to 12 p.m. 
 



Board Book Page 54 

Return to Agenda  
 

Posted open student worker positions and handed out job applications to interested students.  
Printed and distributed student worker contracts for Spring 2022 federal and institutional student 
workers.  Began packaging Pell for the 2022-2023 award year. 
 
Attended the Illinois Department of Veterans Affairs School Certifying Officials Office Hours 
webinar and the ISAC webinar. 
 
Student Success Center 
Mindy Ashby—Director of Student Success 
 
The Department of Student Success has had a great start to the semester and is encouraged by the 
current and prospective collaboration that the Reorganization Chart has facilitated.  Weekly 
newsletters are being sent to students to encourage the utilization of support services offered by 
and through the Department.  To capitalize on the success of the "Get A Smart Start" workshops 
initiated during the Fall 2021 semester and enhance the visibility of support services offered by 
the Department, members of the team will continue offering workshops that foster academic 
support and active participation learning. 
 
The Accessibility and Resource Services Staff supports students with disabilities through 
individual intake appointments and personalized accessibility plans.  At the start of the College's 
spring semester, Accessibility and Resource Services Staff met with Student Support Services' 
Mindy Reach and Tanya Hill to ensure a concerted, agreed-upon plan is implemented for the 
students being assisted by both programs.  In addition, staff from both programs discussed 
student needs, early signs of academic instability, as well as academic and personal progress 
made by students who are affiliated with both programs.  
 
The Testing Center assists students with allied health exam appointments and test administration.  
Students have also been taking advantage of test preparation materials through the Student 
Success Center.  In addition, high schools have begun to coordinate test dates for upcoming dual 
credit registration at the College's main campus. 
 
The Library Staff has continued to assist students, faculty, and staff needing equipment and other 
scholastic resources.  In December, Christina Faulkner sent a newsletter to students highlighting 
how to use the Learning Express Library, which received 1,114 views.  She also began sending a 
courtesy email to all TEAS registrants about TEAS practice tests and resources.  In addition, 
Rachel Hannan, the library assistant, completed the Inclusive and Ethical Leadership Certificate 
presented by the University of South Florida Muma College of Business. 
 
 
Student Support Services 
Amber Suggs—Director of Student Support Services 
 
Student Support Services is in the Annual Performance Report began on January 10 with a 
conclusion date of February 11. 
 



Board Book Page 55 

Return to Agenda  
 

SSS has hosted a virtual regional SSS networking event for SSS Staff.  The intention was to 
provide support and learn best practices.  SCC Administrators Dr. Tim Taylor and Dr. Lisa Price 
gave wonderful words to our attendees.  Dr. Taylor gave a warm welcome.  Dr. Price conducted 
a short session, "Working with Your Administrators." We had 20 SSS Staff participants from 
various colleges in Illinois and Kentucky. 
 
For Fall 2021 data as follows: President's List: 8 students, Vice-President's List: 9 students, 
Average Semester GPA: 2.486, and Average Cumulative GPA: 2.708 
 
We will resume our HBCU Mondays on Tiktok.  This year's Illinois TRiO Day is February 26.  
 
TRiO Educational Talent Search 
Jipaum Askew - Director of Educational Talent Search 
 
ETS administration is in the process of gathering 2020 -2021program information for the current 
APR (Annual Performance Review).  The APR submission window will open on February 1 and 
close on February 28.  
 
ETS staff is in the process of collecting quarterly grades for tutoring referrals at Joppa 
Middle/High School, Meridian High School, Vienna High School, Century Middle/High School, 
and Egyptian High School.  In addition, staff continues to recruit students for the close out of this 
year's programs.  Staff also scheduled one-on-one meetings with students at Century High 
School and presented interviewing etiquette activities for students at Meridian High School.  
 
 
Vice President of Student Success and Services 
Dr. Lisa Price—Vice President of Student Affairs 
 
The Student Affairs department has continued to review procedures and processes that would 
enhance the effectiveness of services to students.  The Student Affairs committees are officially 
beginning during the month of February.  As these committee meetings occur, the relational 
concepts between the SCC Strategic Plan, Shared Governance, Key Performance Indicators and 
student success will become more evident and meaningful to staff.  
 
A report from Kylee Frassato, the Health Coordinator, has provided a report on COVID testing 
and activities for the month.  Monthly reports will now be included in the Student Affairs report 
to the Board.  Vaccination clinics have also been held at each of the Outreach Centers and have 
been open to the community. 
 
 
 
Dr. Lisa Price                                                 2/7/2022 
Vice President of Student Affairs                                           Date 
 
 
 



Board Book Page 56 

Return to Agenda  
 

 

 

 

Illinois Board of Higher Education calls for more funding in new budget 

The Illinois Board of Higher Education voted to approve a new budget for fiscal year 2023 that aims to 
increase funding for state universities and community colleges while prioritizing equity initiatives. 

The news article is reprinted from Crain’s Chicago Business at: 
https://www.chicagobusiness.com/education/illinois-education-board-wants-more-funding-colleges 
 

 

IBHE Board approves higher education budget request bolstering equity-driven 
strategic plan 

SPRINGFIELD – The Illinois Board of Higher Education (IBHE) today approved a fiscal year 2023 budget 
recommendation that increases funding to support its equity-driven strategic plan adopted in June 2021 
and subsequently endorsed by the Illinois Community College Board and the Illinois Student Assistance 
Commission. The budget proposal is $2.1 billion and would reflect a 7 percent ($139 million) increase for 
general funds, excluding the State University  Retirement System (SURS). 
  
The IBHE budget reflects the three goals of the higher education strategic plan, A Thriving Illinois: Equity, 
Sustainability and Growth.  

The following news release was distributed by the Illinois Board of Higher Education at: 
https://www.illinois.gov/news/press-release.24373.html 
 

 
 

Submitted by James Darden 
Illinois Community College Trustees Association Liaison 

https://www.chicagobusiness.com/education/illinois-education-board-wants-more-funding-colleges
https://ibhestrategicplan.ibhe.org/IBHE-Strategic-Plan-2021.html
https://www.illinois.gov/news/press-release.24373.html


Board Book Page 57 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 

 
 
Board of Trustees 
James Darden 
Steve Heisner 
Michael McMahan 
April Moore 
Deborah Shelton-Yates 
John Windings 
Andrea Witthoft 
 
Student Trustee 
Vacant 
 
President 
Dr. Tim Taylor 
 
Vice Presidents 
Darci Cather 
Chris Clark 
Dr. Lisa Price 
 
Executive Directors 
Emily Forthman 
Dr. April Teske 
Dr. Jeffrey Dufour 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Board Memorandum 
  
 To: Board of Trustees 
 From: Dr. Tim Taylor 
 Recommending Staff:  Dr. Lisa Price 
 RE: College Catalog – AY23 
 Date: 02.07.22 
  

Background:   In general, the College catalog is the College’s contract with 
students and the community. To facilitate enrollment and recruitment 
processes for AY 23, the College needs to implement a new catalog. To 
that end, the Higher Learning Commission (HLC), the Illinois Community 
College Board (ICCB), and College policy inform the process. 
 
Specifically, relating to required information for students and the public, 
HLC states, “an institution demonstrates that it makes available to students 
and the public fair, accurate and complete information in catalogs, student 
handbooks, and other publications that include, at a minimum, information 
about the institution’s calendar, grading, admissions, academic program 
requirements, tuition and fees, and refund policies.” ICCB administrative 
Rule 1501.204 states, “The district shall maintain… college catalog or other 
written information on course listings, programs, admission requirements, 
grading system, financial aid, and graduation requirements.” Finally, 
College policy 4350 states, “The College catalog is recognized as an official 
publication of Shawnee Community College.” 
 
To ensure the accuracy of information included in the College’s catalog, a 
Team (led by Dr. Price) consisting of Dr. Lisa Price, Darci Cather, Dr. 
Kristin Shelby, Emily Forthman, Amanda Hannan, JoElla Basler, Ruth 
Smith, Lori Armstrong, Kayla Sauerbrunn, Felicia Rouse and Jacqueline 
Smith, reviewed and revised the catalog to reflect changes made during 
FY22. This Team engaged other participants (e.g. faculty and staff), as 
necessary, to verify the information provided and allow for broad input 
into the process. 
 
In terms of academic program requirements, students who start attending 
SCC after July 1, 2022 will follow the academic program requirements 
outlined in the AY23 catalog. Further, students who attended SCC prior to 
July 1, 2022, depending on their enrollment status, may choose to follow 
the academic program requirements from previous catalog years. Finally, 
all students will follow the academic, business, general, and student 
service policies and procedures outlined in the FY23 catalog. 
 
In recent years, the number of printed versions of the College catalog has 
decreased as we have increased the catalog’s availability in multiple 
electronic formats (including online and USB drives using Adobe .pdf 
files).  Consistent with strategic initiative G2O1SE, the Student Service 
Division is planning to create a HTML driven catalog so that the links are 
dynamic and interactive. 
 
Recommendation: I recommend the Board adopt the College Catalog 
2022-23 which would be effective for Fall 2022 semester. 

 



Board Book Page 58 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 

 
 
Board of Trustees 
James Darden 
Steve Heisner 
Michael McMahan 
April Moore 
Deborah Shelton-Yates 
John Windings 
Andrea Witthoft 
 
Student Trustee 
Vacant 
 
President 
Dr. Tim Taylor 
 
Vice Presidents 
Darci Cather 
Chris Clark 
Dr. Lisa Price 
 
Executive Directors 
Emily Forthman 
Dr. April Teske 
Dr. Jeffrey Dufour 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Board Memorandum 
  
 To: Board of Trustees 
 From: Dr. Tim Taylor 
 Recommending Staff: Chris Clark 
 RE: GFI Lease Agreement 
 Date: 02.07.22 
  

Background: The lease agreements for copiers located in the office areas 
of Student Services, Academic Affairs, Records, Financial Aid and at the 
Metropolis Center will expire shortly.  As such, the College sought 
bids/proposals from three sources:  Xerox, GFI and TI.   
 
Here is a summary of the Bids received: 
 

• GFI Digital – 60-month lease, with six machines (5 located on 
Main Campus, 1 located at Metro Center), at a monthly payment 
of $978.79. ($58,727.40) 

 
• TI – 60-month lease, with five machines (5 located on Main 

Campus), an allotment of 15,000 copies/month and a one-time 
filing fee of $99, resulting in 60 monthly payments of $959.09. 
Overages are billed annually at $.004/copy.  ($57,545.40) 

 
• Xerox – 60-month lease, with five machines (5 located on Main 

Campus), at a monthly payment of $970.91. ($58,254.60) 
 
The most economical bid/proposal received was from GFI Digital, which 
includes a replacement at the Metro Center.  The Term of the proposed 
lease is 60 months.  Total cost for the term of the lease is $58,727.40, 
which reflects 60 monthly payments of $978.79 per month. 
 
 
Recommendation: I recommend the Board approve the 60-month 
($978.79/month) Lease Agreement with GFI Digital and further authorize 
the President to sign the Lease Agreement. 



Board Book Page 59 

Return to Agenda  
 

 



Board Book Page 60 

Return to Agenda  
 

 



Board Book Page 61 

Return to Agenda  
 

 

 



Board Book Page 62 

Return to Agenda  
 

 

 



Board Book Page 63 

Return to Agenda  
 

 

 
 



Board Book Page 64 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 

 
 
 
Board of Trustees 
James Darden 
Steve Heisner 
Michael McMahan 
April Moore 
Deborah Shelton-Yates 
John Windings 
Andrea Witthoft 
 
Student Trustee 
Vacant 
 
President 
Dr. Tim Taylor 
 
Vice Presidents 
Darci Cather 
Chris Clark 
Dr. Lisa Price 
 
Executive Directors 
Emily Forthman 
Dr. April Teske 
Dr. Jeffrey Dufour 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Board Memorandum 
  
 To: Board of Trustees 
 From: Dr. Tim Taylor 
 Recommending Staff:  
 RE: Executive Order Implementation Protocol 
 Date: 2.7.22 
  

Background:  
Attached is a revision to the College’s implementation protocol which 
complies with the Governor’s vax/testing Executive Order (EO).    
  
At this point, the Board should FOCUS attention on the Procedures for 
Non-Compliance for Students and Employees (pp 4-6) sections.  As you will 
see, we have modified the interventions to reflect full compliance with the 
Governor’s EO, the College’s full implementation of SHIELD Testing, and 
the fact students were advised of the Governor’s mandate prior to 
registering for the spring term.   
 
In addition, these protocols consider the latest revision to HB 2778 which 
allows for vaccinated individuals to receive paid leave under certain 
conditions.   
 
Finally, you will note the focus of the interventions is educating and 
counseling individuals into compliance.  We are hopeful these 
interventions will minimize the number of individuals that will be 
prevented from entering campus due to non-compliance with the 
Governor’s EO.   
 
Dr. Price & Dr. Shelby will be available to answer any questions your might 
have. 
 
Recommendation:  I recommend the Board approve the revised EO 
Implementation Protocol and authorize the President to implement the 
progressive interventions outlined for those who choose not to comply 
with the Governor’s mandate. 
 
 
 
 



Board Book Page 65 

Return to Agenda  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SHAWNEE COMMUNITY COLLEGE  

 

 

TESTING AND VACCINATION PROTOCOL 

STUDENTS AND EMPLOYEES 



Board Book Page 66 

Return to Agenda  
 

 

 

  

 

 

Shawnee Community College COVID Vaccination & 
Testing Flow Chart 

For more information on COVID-19 Guidance and Resources, visit the SCC COVID-19 webpage 

Students and 
employees submit 
vaccination status 
in the Saints 
Health 
Protection 
Portal or at the 
Saints Support 
Station 

Showed proof of 
vaccine? 

YES 
Do not need to test 

Upon entry, scan 
SCC ID card/enter 
SCC ID into 
SaintsCheck that 
will indicate entry 
is allowed NO 

Need to test weekly 

Upon entry, scan 
SCC ID card/enter 
SCC ID into 
SaintsCheck that 
will indicate proof 
of testing is 
required to enter 

Showed proof of testing 
in the Saints Health 
Portal or at the Saints 
Support Station 

YES 
Computer will indicate 
entry is allowed until 
the next 7-day cycle 

NO 
Computer will 
indicate entry is not 
allowed  

Students will report to 
the Support Station at 
the entry doors; 
Employees will report 
to HR 

Continue testing at 
SCC or providing test 
results weekly in the 
Saints Health 
Protection Portal or at 
the Saints Support 
Station 

Testing will be required 
at the SCC testing 
center or provide proof 
of testing outside SCC 

Completed and 
approved medical 
or religious 
exemption forms 
on file with SCC 

Health Coordinator 
marks status in the 
SaintsCheck 
system  

Upon entry, scan 
SCC ID card/enter 
SCC ID into 
SaintsCheck that 
will indicate entry 
is allowed 

NO 
Procedures will be 
followed for those 
who do not comply 
with the Executive 
Order  

ST
A

R Individuals who attend 
events on SCC main 
campus and extension 
centers for 5 hours or 
longer must provide 
proof of vaccination 
or testing at time of 
registration 

Showed proof of 
vaccine? 

YES 
May attend event 

NO 

https://shawneecc.edu/statements-concerning-covid-19
https://shawneecc.edu/statements-concerning-covid-19
https://shawneecc.edu/statements-concerning-covid-19
https://shawneecc.edu/statements-concerning-covid-19
https://www.illinois.gov/government/executive-orders/executive-order.executive-order-number-20.2021.html
https://www.illinois.gov/government/executive-orders/executive-order.executive-order-number-20.2021.html


Board Book Page 67 

Return to Agenda  
 

SAINTS HEALTH PROTECTION PORTAL 

STEP 1: Use the Saints Health Protection Portal button on your mySCC homepage, or go 
to https://shawneecc.edu/saints-health-protection-portal 

 

STEP 2: Click the Register button 

 

STEP 3: Fill out the user registration form. (You will need to know your SCC ID) 

 

STEP 4: After registering, click the "Access Document Portal" button 

 

STEP 5: Upload your documents using the "Add File" button. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

https://myscc.shawneecc.edu/
https://shawneecc.edu/saints-health-protection-portal


Board Book Page 68 

Return to Agenda  
 

SAINTSCHECK SYSTEM 

1. All students and employees will either swipe their SCC identification cards or manually type their 
SCC identification numbers into the SaintsCheck computer upon entry to SCC main campus and 
all extension centers.  

2. The screen will indicate entry is allowed or not allowed.  
3. Entry is allowed for the following reasons: 

a. The student or employee has proof of full vaccination on file with SCC. These individuals 
do not need to do anything further and may gain entry to SCC.  

b. The student or employee has not provided proof of full vaccination to SCC but has 
provided proof of a negative COVID test or is awaiting a test result through on-site 
testing at SCC or FDA Approved Antigen Test or Molecular Diagnostic (PCR) Test from 
elsewhere. 

c. The student or employee has an approved medical or religious vaccination exemption 
on file with SCC AND has provided proof of a negative COVID test or is awaiting a test 
result through on-site testing at SCC or FDA Approved Antigen Test or Molecular 
Diagnostic (PCR) Test from elsewhere. 

Reminder: Testing is required until two weeks after the second dose (or first dose for Johnson & 
Johnson). 

4. Entry is not allowed for the following reasons: 
a. The student or employee has not provided proof of full vaccination to SCC AND has not 

provided proof of a negative COVID test or that the individual is awaiting a test result 
through on-site testing at SCC or FDA Approved Antigen Test or Molecular Diagnostic 
(PCR) Test from elsewhere. 

b. The student or employee has an approved medical or religious vaccination exemption 
on file with SCC AND has not provided proof of a negative COVID test or that the 
individual is awaiting a test result through on-site testing at SCC or FDA Approved 
Antigen Test or Molecular Diagnostic (PCR) Test from elsewhere. 

5. Student and employees who are not allowed entry must go to the Shield Testing Center to test 
or make an appointment. Re-entry will not be allowed until the student has tested or made an 
appointment.  

6. The SCC Health Coordinator will monitor the on-site testing portal, through Shield, and the 
Saints Health Portal for the latest vaccination and testing information for students and 
employees. The Health Coordinator will enter the vaccination and testing status of each 
individual into the SaintsCheck System for entry into SCC. The SaintsCheck System should 
correctly reflect the current status of each student or employee.  

a. If a student feels the SaintsCheck System does not accurately reflect their current status, 
the student should report to the Saints Support Station at one of the entry doors at the 
main campus and all extension centers 

b. If an employee feels the SaintsCheck System does not accurately reflect their current 
status, the employee should report to the SCC Human Resources Office. 

https://www.fda.gov/medical-devices/coronavirus-disease-2019-covid-19-emergency-use-authorizations-medical-devices/in-vitro-diagnostics-euas-antigen-diagnostic-tests-sars-cov-2
https://www.fda.gov/medical-devices/coronavirus-disease-2019-covid-19-emergency-use-authorizations-medical-devices/in-vitro-diagnostics-euas-molecular-diagnostic-tests-sars-cov-2#umbrella-molecular
https://www.fda.gov/medical-devices/coronavirus-disease-2019-covid-19-emergency-use-authorizations-medical-devices/in-vitro-diagnostics-euas-antigen-diagnostic-tests-sars-cov-2
https://www.fda.gov/medical-devices/coronavirus-disease-2019-covid-19-emergency-use-authorizations-medical-devices/in-vitro-diagnostics-euas-molecular-diagnostic-tests-sars-cov-2#umbrella-molecular
https://www.fda.gov/medical-devices/coronavirus-disease-2019-covid-19-emergency-use-authorizations-medical-devices/in-vitro-diagnostics-euas-molecular-diagnostic-tests-sars-cov-2#umbrella-molecular
https://www.fda.gov/medical-devices/coronavirus-disease-2019-covid-19-emergency-use-authorizations-medical-devices/in-vitro-diagnostics-euas-antigen-diagnostic-tests-sars-cov-2
https://www.fda.gov/medical-devices/coronavirus-disease-2019-covid-19-emergency-use-authorizations-medical-devices/in-vitro-diagnostics-euas-molecular-diagnostic-tests-sars-cov-2#umbrella-molecular
https://www.fda.gov/medical-devices/coronavirus-disease-2019-covid-19-emergency-use-authorizations-medical-devices/in-vitro-diagnostics-euas-molecular-diagnostic-tests-sars-cov-2#umbrella-molecular
https://www.fda.gov/medical-devices/coronavirus-disease-2019-covid-19-emergency-use-authorizations-medical-devices/in-vitro-diagnostics-euas-antigen-diagnostic-tests-sars-cov-2
https://www.fda.gov/medical-devices/coronavirus-disease-2019-covid-19-emergency-use-authorizations-medical-devices/in-vitro-diagnostics-euas-molecular-diagnostic-tests-sars-cov-2#umbrella-molecular


Board Book Page 69 

Return to Agenda  
 

PROCEDURES FOR NON-COMPLIANCE WITH THE EXECUTIVE ORDER 

The SCC Health Coordinator will monitor compliance with the Executive Order and maintain those 
records.  All students and employees must comply with the Governor’s Executive Order by doing one of 
the following: 

• Have proof of full vaccination on file with SCC 
• Have proof of a negative COVID test or awaiting a test result through on-site testing at SCC or 

PCR test from elsewhere within the last 7 days on file with SCC 
• Have a medical or religious vaccination exemption AND proof of a negative COVID test or 

awaiting a test result through on-site testing at SCC or PCR test from elsewhere on file with SCC 
Students:  

1st Occurrences within Semester  

STEP 1: The Health Coordinator will contact the student regarding non-compliant status, the steps 
that will occur on subsequent occurrences, and resources for obtaining a vaccination and/or 
approved COVID test.   

STEP 2: The student must go to the Shield Testing Center to test or make an appointment. Re-entry 
will not be allowed until the student has tested or made an appointment. Reminder: Testing is 
required until two weeks after the second dose (or first dose for Johnson & Johnson).  

STEP 3: Upon testing, the student’s status will be updated in SaintsCheck and allowed entry into 
SCC. If the student does not test at the scheduled time, see the “ 2nd Occurrence” steps below. 

2nd Occurrence within Semester 

STEP 1: The Health Coordinator will submit an official letter to the student regarding the 2nd  
occurrence of non-compliant status that will require the student to attend an administrative 
meeting with the Dean of Transfer & Adult Education, the steps that will occur on subsequent 
occurrences will be included, as well as resources for obtaining a vaccination and/or approved 
COVID test.   

STEP 2: The student must go to the Shield Testing Center to test or make an appointment. Re-entry 
will not be allowed until the student has tested or made an appointment. Reminder: Testing is 
required until two weeks after the second dose (or first dose for Johnson & Johnson).  

STEP 3: Upon testing, the student’s status will be updated in SaintsCheck and allowed entry into 
SCC. If the student does not test at the scheduled time, see the “3rd Occurrence” steps below. 

3rd Occurrence within Semester 

STEP 1: The Health Coordinator will submit an official letter to the student regarding the   3rd  
occurrence of non-compliant status that will require an administrative meeting with the Vice 
President of Student Affairs, and a $150 administrative fee will be assessed to the student.   

STEP 2: The student must go to the Shield Testing Center to test or make an appointment. Re-entry 
will not be allowed until the student has tested or made an appointment.  Reminder: Testing is 
required until two weeks after the second dose (or first dose for Johnson & Johnson).  

 



Board Book Page 70 

Return to Agenda  
 

STEP 3: Upon testing, the student’s status will be updated in SaintsCheck and allowed entry into 
SCC. If the student has no additional occurrences within the same semester, the student can petition 
to have the $150 administrative fee refunded. If the student does not provide proof by the required 
deadline, see the “4th Occurrence” steps below. 

4th Occurrence within Semester 

STEP 1: The Health Coordinator will submit an official letter to the student and the Registrar 
regarding the 4th occurrence that will place a registration hold on the student’s account for the 
subsequent semesters, and resources for obtaining a vaccination and/or approved COVID test. 

STEP 2: While the Executive Order is in place, the student will not be allowed to attend face-to-face 
courses or attend SCC events on main campus and extension centers until in compliance. However, 
the student can register for remote courses if the account is in good standing.  

*Note:  Occurrences are cumulative and DO NOT reset in a given semester. 

Employees:  

1st and 2nd Occurrences  

STEP 1: The Health Coordinator will contact Human Resources regarding non-compliant status. 

STEP 2: Human Resources will contact the employee regarding non-compliant status and resources 
for obtaining a vaccination and/or approved COVID test.   

STEP 3: The employee will be asked to obtain testing immediately and be given a date to provide 
proof. Reminder: Testing is required until two weeks after the second dose (or first dose for Johnson 
& Johnson).  

STEP 4: If the employee provides proof by the required deadline, the employee’s status will be 
updated in SaintsCheck and allowed entry into SCC. If the employee does not provide proof by the 
required deadline, see the “3rd Occurrence” steps below. 

3rd Occurrence 

STEP 1: The Health Coordinator will contact Human Resources regarding the 3rd occurrence.  

STEP 2: Human Resources will submit an official letter to the employee and to the reporting 
supervisor (e.g., President, Vice President, Executive Director, etc.) regarding the 3rd occurrence of 
non-compliant status, the required 1-day suspension with pay, the steps that will occur on a 4th 
occurrence, and resources for obtaining a vaccination and/or approved COVID test.   

 



Board Book Page 71 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 

STEP 3: The employee will be asked to obtain testing immediately and be given a date to provide 
proof. Reminder: Testing is required until two weeks after the second dose (or first dose for Johnson 
& Johnson).  

STEP 4: If the employee provides proof by the required deadline, the employee’s status will be 
updated in SaintsCheck and allowed entry into SCC. If the employee does not provide proof by the 
required deadline, see the “4th Occurrence” steps below. 

4th Occurrence 

STEP 1: The Health Coordinator will contact Human Resources regarding the 4th occurrence.  

STEP 2: Human Resources will submit an official letter to the employee and to the reporting 
supervisor (e.g., President, Vice President, Executive Director, etc.) regarding the 4th occurrence, 
that the employee is suspended without pay until compliance with the EO, and resources for 
obtaining a vaccination and/or approved COVID test. 

STEP 3: The employee will be allowed to return to work once proof of vaccination or testing is on file 
with SCC.  

*Note:  Occurrences are cumulative and DO NOT reset in a given semester. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board Book Page 72 

Return to Agenda  
 

 

ON-SITE TESTING INFORMATION 

 
Shield Illinois: https://www.shieldt3.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/ShieldT3-infographic.pdf  

 
 
 
 

https://www.shieldt3.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/ShieldT3-infographic.pdf


Board Book Page 73 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 

 
 
Board of Trustees 
James Darden 
Steve Heisner 
Michael McMahan 
April Moore 
Deborah Shelton-Yates 
John Windings 
Andrea Witthoft 
 
Student Trustee 
Vacant 
 
President 
Dr. Tim Taylor 
 
Vice Presidents 
Darci Cather 
Dr. Lisa Price 
Chris Clark 
 
Executive Directors 
Dr. April Teske 
Emily Forthman 
Dr. Jeffrey Dufour 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Board Memorandum 
  
 To: Board of Trustees 
 From: Dr. Tim Taylor 
 Recommending Staff: None 
 RE: Collective Bargaining Team 
 Date: 02.07.22 

 
 Background: On January 18, 2022, the College received an official request 

(attached) to bargain a successor agreement from the Shawnee College 
Education Association (SCEA).  Pursuant to 115 ILCS 5/10 of the Illinois 
Educational Labor Relations Act, it would be appropriate for the Board to 
identify it’s exclusive bargaining Team.  To that end, I recommend the 
Board appoint the following individuals to represent the Board’s interest:  
 

 Chris Clark, Vice President of Administrative Services 
 Dr. Kristin Shelby, Dean of Transfer & Adult Education 
 Dr. Greg Mason, Dean of Career & Technology 
 Amanda Hannan, Dean of Allied Health & Nursing 
 Emily Forthman, Executive Director of Human Resources 

 
The SCEA (and I) have expressed interest in pursuing an interest-based 
bargaining model.  The interest based bargaining model (a.k.a. integrative-
based bargaining or win-win bargaining) is a negotiation strategy in which 
both parties collaborate to find a "win-win" solution to disputes. This 
strategy focuses on developing mutually beneficial agreements based on 
the interests of the parties.  Typically, this style of negotiation tends to 
assist with strengthening organization culture over other forms of 
negotiation.  Often, this style of negotiation lends to creative solutions to 
organizational issues.   
 
The SCEA has proposed interest-based bargaining training from the 
Federal Mediation and Conciliation Services (FMCS).  There are other 
interest-based bargaining providers that might be jointly considered.  If 
approved, I would ask the Board’s Collective Bargaining Team to research 
alternatives with the SCEA and make some joint recommendations. 
 
Recommendation: I recommend the Board approve the Collective 
Bargaining Team as noted above and authorize them to begin the 
collective bargaining process, which includes the selection of a trainer for 
the interest-based bargaining process. 

 
  

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=1177&ChapterID=19


Board Book Page 74 

Return to Agenda  
 

Shawnee College Education Association 
Ian Nicolaides, SCEA President 

8364 Shawnee College Road 
Ullin, IL 62992 

 
 
 
January 18, 2022 
 
 
Mr. Steve Heisner 
Board of Trustees Chairman 
Shawnee Community College 
8364 Shawnee College Road 
Ullin, IL 62992 
 
Dear Mr. Heisner,  
 
The Shawnee College Education Association-IEA/NEA is filing this formal demand to bargain a 
successor agreement with the exclusive bargaining representative pursuant to the Illinois 
Educational Labor Relations Act. It is my understanding that bargaining must commence within 
sixty (60) days of your receipt of this letter. 
 
The SCEA team is considering the interest-based bargaining process and request your team be 
available for training with us in this bargaining format. It is the SCEA’s desire to mutually 
establish a date at which time both parties can meet for training, SCEA is awaiting available 
training dates from the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Services facilitator, and will make 
suggested dates to both teams from those available.  
 
We are looking forward to a positive and productive bargaining relationship. Please contact 
Wendy Harris, SCEA Bargaining Chair, at your earliest convenience to schedule the initial 
meeting. 
    
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Ian Nicolaides 
SCEA President 
 
c       Dr. Tim Taylor, SCC President 

Ms. Cathy Stewart, UniServ Director 
 Ms. Darci Cather, SCC Vice President of Academic Affairs 
 Ms. Wendy Harris, SCEA Bargaining Chair 
 
 



Board Book Page 75 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 

 
 
Board of Trustees 
James Darden 
Steve Heisner 
Michael McMahan 
April Moore 
Deborah Shelton-Yates 
John Windings 
Andrea Witthoft 
 
Student Trustee 
Vacant 
 
President 
Dr. Tim Taylor 
 
Vice Presidents 
Darci Cather 
Dr. Lisa Price 
Chris Clark 
 
Executive Directors 
Dr. April Teske 
Emily Forthman 
Dr. Jeffrey Dufour 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Board Memorandum 
  
 To: Board of Trustees 
 From: Dr. Tim Taylor 
 Recommending Staff: Amanda Hannan,  
 RE: High-Fidelity Simulation Manikins – GT Simulators 
 Date: 02.07.22 
  

Background:  The Delta Healthcare Grant provides funding for use in 
providing new positions, program and equipment needed for the 
Emergency Medical Technician, Certified Medical Assistant and Certified 
Nursing Assistant Programs.  Desired equipment includes high-fidelity 
simulation training manikins.  These will serve several purposes including 
usage across all Allied Health and Nursing Programs. 
 
The CAE Juno simulation manikins prepare healthcare providers for 
prehospital and hospital environments.  These manikins help fill the gap 
by delivering consistent training and by assisting students in developing 
critical thinking skills.  CAE, Juno, CAE’s Healthcare’s clinical skills 
manikin, is a modern manikin that was designed to meet the educational 
requirement for clinical skills, from task-training through advanced 
patient care scenarios. 
 
These state of the art, high-fidelity simulators can be used in the 
classroom & lab setting, as well as during the SCC Experience and Career & 
Technical Education Day offerings for local high schools.   
 
Additional Quotes: 
PocketNurse:  5 Manikins w/virtual instruction/training $60,230.63 
Anatomy Warehouse:  5 Manikins w/instructor-led training $60,350.00 
 
The Delta Healthcare Grant serves to develop programs that meet the 
needs of our community and region.  This equipment will meet the 
College’s Strategic Plan Goal 1, Objective 2, Strategy F as well as Goal 4, 
Objective 2.  The purchase includes 3 medium skin manikins and 2 dark 
skin manikins to represent diversity within the classroom/skills lab 
setting.  The following quote is from GT Technologies. 
 

• 3-Medium Skin CAE Juno Simulators: $32,400 (Includes 1-year 
service/warranty) fully funded through the Delta Healthcare Grant 
(quote attached). 

• 2-Dark Skin CAE Juno Simulators: $21,600 (Includes 1-year 
service/warranty) fully funded by the Delta Healthcare Grant 
(quote attached). 

 
Dean Hannan will be available to answer questions about this purchase. 
 
Recommendation: I recommend the Board approve and authorize the 
purchase of five GT Technologies CAE Juno simulators for a total of 
$54,000. 

 



Board Book Page 76 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 77 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 78 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 79 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 80 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 81 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 

 
 
Board of Trustees 
James Darden 
Steve Heisner 
Michael McMahan 
April Moore 
Deborah Shelton-Yates 
John Windings 
Andrea Witthoft 
 
Student Trustee 
Vacant 
 
President 
Dr. Tim Taylor 
 
Vice Presidents 
Darci Cather 
Dr. Lisa Price 
Chris Clark 
 
Executive Directors 
Dr. April Teske 
Emily Forthman 
Dr. Jeffrey Dufour 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Board Memorandum 
  
 To: Board of Trustees 
 From: Dr. Tim Taylor 
 Recommending Staff: Amanda Hannan,  
 RE: High-Fidelity Pediatric Simulation Manikins – Gaumard Simulators 
 Date: 02.07.22 
  

Background:  The Delta Healthcare Grant provides funding for use in 
providing new positions, program and equipment needed for the 
Emergency Medical Technician, Certified Medical Assistant and Certified 
Nursing Assistant Programs.  Desired equipment includes high-fidelity 
simulation training manikins.  These will serve several purposes including 
usage across all Allied Health and Nursing Programs. 
 
The Gaumard Pediatric HAL simulator is the most advanced pediatric 
patient simulator, capable of simulating lifelike emotions through 
dynamic facial expressions, movement, and speech. This pediatric manikin 
is designed for interaction and for use in emergency training. 
 
The Gaumard SUPER TORY is the first newborn simulator developed to 
meet the challenges of neonatal care specialist training in real 
environments. Active movement, true ventilator support, and real patient 
monitoring are features of this manikin. While it is important to note that 
the college presently has a Gaumard VICTORIA high-fidelity manikin to 
teach obstetric care and emergencies, the baby that comes with VICTORIA 
does not have assessment capabilities for any longer than 5 minutes after 
a simulated birth. SUPER TORY will provide the student with the ability to 
learn appropriate neonatal assessment and care. Our EMT students may 
likely face the emergency of a delivery enroute to a facility and it is critical 
that they are adequately trained in the care and treatment of the newborn 
as well as other life-threatening complications of newborns. 
 
These purchases meet the College’s Strategic Plan Goal 1, Objective 2, 
Strategy B, Strategy F. High Fidelity Simulation equipment can also meet 
Strategic Plan Goal 4, Objective 2. 
 

• Cost of Pediatric HAL Simulator: $49,500 for the simulator, $2,095 
for the bedside monitor accessory, $16,375 for three years of 
service for the simulator.  

• Cost of the SUPER TORY Simulator: $39,950 for the simulator, 
$2,095 for the bedside monitor accessory, and $10,695 for three 
years of service for simulator  

• Cost of Two-day training service and installation for multiple 
simulators, region specific $3,500; Cost of Freight and Handling 
$779.39; Total: $124,989.39  

 
Gaumard is a sole-source provider for these types of simulators.  Dean 
Hannan will be available to answer questions about this purchase. 
 
Recommendation: I recommend the Board approve and authorize the 
purchase of the Gaumard Pediatric HAL and SUPER TORY neonatal 
simulator for a total of $124,989.39. 

 



Board Book Page 82 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 83 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 84 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 85 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 
Gaumard Scientific Company., Inc. located at 14700 SW 136 Street, Miami, FL 33196 is the sole provider 
and sole manufacturer for the following item: S2220 Super Tory®. 

  
Super Tory is the first newborn simulator developed to meet the challenges of neonatal care specialist training in 
real environments. Active movement, true ventilator support, real patient monitoring, and all-day battery life. 
These are just a few of the revolutionary new capabilities that allow Super Tory to simulate complex pathologies 
and respond to interventions with unparalleled realism 
 

 Full-term newborn, 8 lbs., 21 in. 
 Tetherless and wireless; fully responsive during transport 
 Wireless control at distances up to 100 ft. 
 Internal rechargeable battery provides up to 8 hr. of Tetherless operation 
 Smooth and supple full- body skin with seamless trunk and limb joints 
 Programmable movement: blinking, mouth open and close, arm and leg flexion and extension 
 Realistic joint articulation: neck, shoulder, elbow, hip, and knee 
 Forearm pronation and supination 
 Lifelike umbilicus and post cord detachment navel 
 Palpable bony landmarks 
 Near-silent operation 
 NOELLE® Fetus-Newborn wireless link capability 
 Tablet PC preloaded with UNI® included 
 OMNI®2 ready 
 Crying/grunting with visible mouth movement 
 Blinking eyes 
 Seizures/convulsions 
 Programmable muscle tone: active, reduced, and limp 
 Anatomically accurate oral cavity and airway 
 Nasotracheal / orotracheal intubation (ETT, laryngeal airway) 
 Head tilt, chin lift, jaw thrust 
 Supports esophageal intubation 
 NG/OG tube placement 
 Bag-valve-mask ventilation support 
 Neck hyperextension and flexion airway obstruction with event capture and logging 
 Intubation depth detection and software event log 
 Spontaneous, continuous breathing 
 Variable respiratory rates and inspiratory/ expiratory ratios 
 Programmable unilateral chest rise and fall 
 Unilateral lung sounds synchronized with respiratory rate 
 Programmable retractions, "see-saw" breathing 
 Mechanical ventilation support  

 A/C, SIMV, CPAP, PCV, PSV, NIPPV 
 Supports PEEP (up to 20 cmH2O) 
 Dynamic airway and lung controls 
 Variable lung compliance 
 Bilateral bronchi resistance 

 
 



Board Book Page 86 

Return to Agenda  
 

 Programmable respiratory efforts for weaning/liberation 
 Unilateral chest rises with right main stem intubation (Automatic detection and logging) 
 Real-time ventilation feedback 
 Bilateral, midaxillary pneumothorax sites support needle decompression and chest tube insertion 
 Pneumothorax sites feature palpable bony landmarks, realistic skin for cutting and suturing, bleeding, 

tactile pleural pop, and fluid drain 
 Visible chest rise during bag-valve-mask ventilation 
 Supports EtCO2 monitoring using real sensors and monitoring devices 
 Visible cyanosis, jaundice, paleness, and redness with variable intensities 
 Supports manual capillary refill time assessment on the left foot (Automatic detection and logging) 
 Programmable fontanel: depressed, normal, and bulging 
 Palpable pulses: brachial, femoral, and umbilical 
 Pulse palpation event detection and logging 
 Blood pressure dependent pulses 
 Supports blood pressure monitoring using real NIBP cuff 
 Audible Korotkoff sounds 
 Preductal (right hand) and post ductal (right foot) SpO2 monitoring using real devices 
 Includes comprehensive library of ECG rhythms with customizable beat variations 
 Supports ECG monitoring using real devices 
 Supports ECG-derived respiration monitoring (EDR) 
 eCPR™ Real-time quality feedback and reporting  

 Time to CPR 
 Compression depth/rate 
 Compression interruptions 
 Ventilation rate 
 Excessive ventilation 
 Smart CPR voice coach 

 Chest compression depth sensor 
 Defibrillate, cardiovert, and pace using real devices and energy 
 Effective chest compressions generate palpable femoral pulses and ECG activity 
 Healthy and abnormal heart sounds 
 Supports virtual pacing and defibrillation 
 IV cannulation: bolus, infusion, and sampling 
 Hand 
 Scalp 
 Umbilicus 
 Umbilical catheterization (UVC/UAC): continuous infusion and sampling 
 Bilateral IO Tibial infusion 
 Programmable abdominal distension  
 Urinary catheterization with return  
 Normal and abnormal bowel sounds  

 
Please do not hesitate to contact us if you require additional information.  
Sincerely,  
Keila Brooks 
Customer Service Department 
Gaumard Scientific 
305-971-3790 ext.2142 
305-252-0755 Fax 
keila.brooks@gaumard.com 
www.gaumard.com 
 

mailto:keila.brooks@gaumard.com
http://www.gaumard.com/


Board Book Page 87 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 88 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 89 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 90 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 91 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 92 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 
 



Board Book Page 93 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 94 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 95 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 96 

Return to Agenda  
 

 



Board Book Page 97 

Return to Agenda  
 

 



Board Book Page 98 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 99 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 

 
 
Board of Trustees 
James Darden 
Steve Heisner 
Michael McMahan 
April Moore 
Deborah Shelton-Yates 
John Windings 
Andrea Witthoft 
 
Student Trustee 
Vacant 
 
President 
Dr. Tim Taylor 
 
Vice Presidents 
Darci Cather 
Dr. Lisa Price 
Chris Clark 
 
Executive Directors 
Dr. April Teske 
Emily Forthman 
Dr. Jeffrey Dufour 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Board Memorandum 
  
 To: Board of Trustees 
 From: Dr. Tim Taylor 
 Recommending Staff: Amanda Hannan 
 RE: Hill-ROM Bed Simulation Suite – DiaMedical USA 
 Date: 02.07.22 
  

Background:  The Delta Healthcare Grant provides funding for use in 
providing new positions, program and equipment needed for the 
Emergency Medical Technician, Certified Medical Assistant and Certified 
Nursing Assistant Programs.  Desired equipment includes high-fidelity 
simulation training manikins.  These will serve several purposes including 
usage across all Allied Health and Nursing Programs. 
 
The Hill-ROM CareAssist Hospital Bed Sim Lab Starter Suite by 
SimLabSolutions includes a reconditioned electric hospital bed with a new 
mattress, new bed sheets, new overbed table, new bedside cabinet and a 1-
year warranty in Biltmore Cherry finish. Simulation equipment can be used 
in the classroom and lab setting and can be an alternate for up to 25% of 
clinical opportunities in some disciplines, if requirements are met by the 
Illinois Department of Financial and Professional Regulation.  
 
The beds as part of an updated simulation lab can be demonstrated to the 
community, particularly in the SCC Experience and Career and Technical 
Education Day offerings for local high schools, which is used to create 
interest in SCC’s allied health and nursing programs. Any improved 
simulation equipment as part of programs that create high-skill, high-
wage jobs for our region are an asset to the college. The Delta Healthcare 
Grant alone serves to develop programs and positions that meet the needs 
of our community and region, but this equipment will benefit all allied 
health and nursing programs which meets SCC’s Strategic Plan Goal 1, 
Objective 2, Strategy B, Strategy F. Simulation equipment can also meet 
Strategic Plan Goal 4, Objective 2.  
 

• Cost of  Hill-ROM CareAssist Simulation Lab Starter Suite Package, 
per unit $3295.00 (Total $26,360.00) 

• Cost of shipping including liftgate service $2098.98 
• Total: $28,458.98  

 
Note: All 8 existing beds from the skills lab will be reallocated. Two beds 
will be used for CNA labs in each Metropolis and Cairo Extension Centers. 
One bed will replace a bed at the Anna Extension Center. The other three 
beds can be offered to area dual-credit CNA programs.  
 
Dean Hannan will be available to answer questions about this purchase. 
 
Recommendation: I recommend the Board approve and authorize the 
purchase of the 8 Hill-ROM CareAssist Simulation Lab Starter Suite 
packages. 

 



Board Book Page 100 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 



Board Book Page 101 

Return to Agenda  
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Board of Trustees 
James Darden 
Steve Heisner 
Michael McMahan 
April Moore 
Deborah Shelton-Yates 
John Windings 
Andrea Witthoft 
 
Student Trustee 
Vacant 
 
President 
Dr. Tim Taylor 
 
Vice Presidents 
Darci Cather 
Chris Clark 
Dr. Lisa Price 
 
Executive Directors 
Emily Forthman 
Dr. April Teske 
Dr. Jeffrey Dufour 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Board Memorandum 
  
 To: Board of Trustees 
 From: Dr. Tim Taylor 
 Recommending Staff: Emily Forthman 
 RE: Vacation Policy 6260 
 Date: February 7, 2022 
  

Background: Last spring, when considering the hire of the Executive 
Director of Institutional Effectiveness, the Board engaged in a discussion 
on barriers the College faced in attracting high quality candidates into 
higher level administrative positions.   
 
One potential solution considered centered on how the College gave credit 
for vacation time based on an individual’s experience in administrative 
positions at other educational organizations. Specifically, one Trustee 
reminded the Board that an adjustment had been made (September 2019) 
to Policy 6260 for the purpose of helping the College become more 
competitive at attracting Vice President candidates.  It was suggested that 
perhaps this same strategy might be useful for other administrative 
positions.   
 
After discussion, the Board directed the President to consider appropriate 
position levels and make a policy recommendation, if appropriate.  To this 
end, after analyzing candidate pools for various open positions over the 
last several months coupled with the conclusion of the College’s 
reorganization efforts in December 2021, the Executive Director of Human 
Resources, Emily Forthman, and I recommend Policy 6260 be adjusted to 
include positions at grade level 11 (i.e. Director) and above.   
 
By implementing this change, we believe the College should be more 
equitable and competitive in attracting individuals who have accumulated 
3-4 weeks of vacation time at other educational institutions based on their 
educational experience.  The current 6260 policy is included for 
comparison purposes. 
 
Recommendation: I recommend the Board approve the directed revision 
to policy 6260, as outlined. 

 

 



Board Book Page 102 

Return to Agenda  
 

Proposed Policy 
 

VACATION     6260 
 
 

A. A full-time twelve-month employee will be granted vacation days.  The number of vacation days 
granted will be based on length of FT service with the College.   

 
 
 Vacation Schedule: 
  

Years of Service Annual Vacation Days Monthly Accrual Earned 
   

Hire to 1 year 12 8 hours 
1-2 years 13 8.66 hours 
2-3 years 14 9.33 hours 
3-4 years 15 10 hours 
4-5 years 16 10.66 hours 
5-6 years 17 11.33 hours 
6-7 years 18 12 hours 
7-8 years 19 12.66 hours 
8+ years 20 13.33 hours 

 
B. Vacation days which accrue during an employment period must be used during that period or 

within six months from the annual expiration of that period.  Any accrued vacation days not used 
within the prescribed time will be forfeited.  See Section D. 

 
 

C. Vacation requests should be submitted to the employee's immediate supervisor at least one (1) 
week prior to the day(s) being requested.  Vacation can be taken in hourly increments.  Please 
note that efforts will consistently be made to accommodate all vacation requests for all 
employees.  However, the College reserves the right to deny vacation requests if such requests 
will jeopardize the work of the College or place a severe handicap on other  College 
employees.  Absolutely no vacations will be allowed, except in cases of emergency, during the 
peak registration times prior to or during the first week of fall, spring, and summer semesters. 

 
D. Any unused vacation hours up to a maximum of 50% of the vacation hours earned for the fiscal 

year may be converted to accumulated sick days, placed in a separate rollover bank, not 
recognized by SURS.   Upon an employee's severance of employment with the college, for any 
reason, all accrued vacation hours will be expended or compensated. 

 
E. Newly hired employees at the level of Vice President Director (grade level 11) or above may be 

granted credit for years of service in an equivalent position at a previous employer for accrual 
purposes only. 

 
Revised:  July 2016, July 2017, September 2019, February 2022 

 
 
 



Board Book Page 103 

Return to Agenda  
 

Current Policy 
 

VACATION   6260 
 

A. A full-time twelve-month employee will be granted vacation days.  The number of vacation days 
granted will be based on length of FT service with the College.   

 
 
 Vacation Schedule: 
  

Years of Service Annual Vacation Days Monthly Accrual Earned 
   

Hire to 1 year 12 8 hours 
1-2 years 13 8.66 hours 
2-3 years 14 9.33 hours 
3-4 years 15 10 hours 
4-5 years 16 10.66 hours 
5-6 years 17 11.33 hours 
6-7 years 18 12 hours 
7-8 years 19 12.66 hours 
8+ years 20 13.33 hours 

 
B. Vacation days which accrue during an employment period must be used during that period or 

within six months from the annual expiration of that period.  Any accrued vacation days not used 
within the prescribed time will be forfeited.  See Section D. 

 
C. Vacation requests should be submitted to the employee's immediate supervisor at least one (1) 

week prior to the day(s) being requested.  Vacation can be taken in hourly increments.  Please 
note that efforts will consistently be made to accommodate all vacation requests for all 
employees.  However, the College reserves the right to deny vacation requests if such requests 
will jeopardize the work of the College or place a severe handicap on other  College 
employees.  Absolutely no vacations will be allowed, except in cases of emergency, during the 
peak registration times prior to or during the first week of fall, spring, and summer semesters. 

 
D. Any unused vacation hours up to a maximum of 50% of the vacation hours earned for the fiscal 

year may be converted to accumulated sick days, placed in a separate rollover bank, not 
recognized by SURS.   Upon an employee's severance of employment with the college, for any 
reason, all accrued vacation hours will be expended or compensated. 

 
E. Newly hired employees at the level of Vice President or above may be granted credit for years of 

service in an equivalent position at a previous employer for accrual purposes only. 
 
Revised:  July 2016, July 2017, September 2019 
 
 



Board Book Page 104 

Return to Agenda Return to Executive Session Action Agenda 
 

 
 

 
 
Board of Trustees 
James Darden 
Steve Heisner 
Michael McMahan 
April Moore 
Deborah Shelton-Yates 
John Windings 
Andrea Witthoft 
 
Student Trustee 
Vacant 
 
President 
Dr. Tim Taylor 
 
Vice Presidents 
Darci Cather 
Dr. Lisa Price 
Chris Clark 
 
Executive Directors 
Dr. April Teske 
Emily Forthman 
Dr. Jeffrey Dufour 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Board Memorandum 
  
 To: Board of Trustees 
 From: Dr. Tim Taylor 
 Recommending Staff: None 
 RE: Policy Governance Training 
 Date: 02.07.22 

 
 Background: At the October 14, 2021 Special Board Meeting, the Board 

completed roughly half of the planned policy governance training needed 
to fully evaluate the proposed policies recommended by the Board Policy 
Committee.  As such, at the November 1, 2021 regular Board Meeting, the 
Board approved a policy review schedule that includes the remaining part 
of this training.  To that end, Chairperson Heisner and I have planned to 
provide approximately an hour of training focused on providing clarity 
around the Executive Limitations and Delegation of Authority draft 
policies.  In addition, a quick review of previous training and topics for the 
February training session will be provided.  Please direct any questions 
that you may have to me.    
 
Recommendation: None at this time. 
 

 
 


	Word Bookmarks
	Agenda
	Minutes
	TreasurersReport
	Bills
	Addendum
	StudentReport
	FacultyReport
	PresReport
	VPAA
	VPAS
	InsEff
	PR
	Foundation
	VPSA
	ICCTA
	CollegeCatalog
	MemoGFI
	GFI
	MemoEO
	EO
	FlowChart
	SaintsHealthPortal
	SaintsCheckSystem
	NoncomlianceProceudres
	TestingInformation
	CBTeam
	MemoGlobal
	Global
	MemoGaumard
	Gaumard
	PolicyTraining
	MemoBed
	Bed
	MemoVacationPolicy
	VacationPolicy
	MemoPolicyTraining


